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Hernandez, Amanda

From: Pantalion, Joe
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 4:44 PM
To: Mattingly, Shannon; Hernandez, Amanda; Hjorth, Tyler
Cc: Reyes, Stephanie
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Vistra/Hays Power Plant Request to Deny Ordinance 2022-44 and Ordinance 

2022-45 on Second Reading August 2
Attachments: Hays_2022-02-01_N_22004858_V_OPR RECORDED.pdf; Hays_2022-01-31_N_22004594_V_OPR 

Recorded.pdf

FYI – please add to packet. 
 

 

Joe Pantalion, PE  

Assistant City Manager | City Manager's Office  

630 E Hopkins, San Marcos, TX 78666  

512.393.8106  

Please take a moment to complete the City of San Marcos Customer Satisfaction Survey.  
 

From: Watson, Brad <Brad.Watson@luminant.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 4:39 PM 
To: Baker, Maxfield <MBaker@sanmarcostx.gov>; Gonzales, Saul <SGonzales2@sanmarcostx.gov>; Garza, Alyssa 
<AGarza@sanmarcostx.gov>; Scott, Shane <SScott@sanmarcostx.gov>; Gleason, Mark <mgleason@sanmarcostx.gov>; 
Prather, Jude <JPrather@sanmarcostx.gov>; Hughson, Jane <JHughson@sanmarcostx.gov> 
Cc: Reyes, Stephanie <SReyes@sanmarcostx.gov>; Council Members Mail Group <CouncilMembers@sanmarcostx.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Vistra/Hays Power Plant Request to Deny Ordinance 2022‐44 and Ordinance 2022‐45 on Second 
Reading August 2 
 

Dear Mayor Hughson and San Marcos City Councilmembers, 
 
As requested by Tyler Hjorth, San Marcos Director of Utilities, Vistra provided information to the City this 
afternoon on questions about operations at the Hays Power Plant as they relate to proposals to annex and 
rezone property adjacent to the plant for residences. 
 
Vistra, owner and operator of the Hays Power Plant, respectfully asks that you deny the proposals when they 
come before you for the second reading on August 2. Our reasons are explained below and in particular in the 
attached Deed Covenants that cover the property in question and were signed by the developer when he 
purchased the property. 
 
As the top elected officials and ultimate decision makers on land use policy for the City, I wanted to make sure 
you have all the information you need to make a fully informed decision. Should you have any questions or 
need more information, our company stands ready to assist you. 
 
Vistra and the men and women who work at Hays Power Plant are proud to be part of San Marcos. I look 
forward to talking with you in the days ahead. 
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Sincerely, 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Watson, Brad  
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 3:40 PM 
To: Hjorth, Tyler <THjorth@sanmarcostx.gov>; Rice, Jon <Jon.Rice@luminant.com>; Wiedenfeld, Kurt 
<Kurt.Wiedenfeld@vistracorp.com>; Rugeley, Will <WRugeley@sanmarcostx.gov> 
Cc: Mattingly, Shannon <SMattingly@sanmarcostx.gov> 
Subject: RE: Council Questions 
 

Dear Mr. Hjorth, 

Thank you for the information you sent regarding consideration by the San Marcos City Council to annex and 

rezone the 137‐acre parcel adjacent to the Hays Power Plant. I sincerely appreciate you providing me the link 

for the agenda and video for the Council’s July 5th meeting. For reasons I’ve yet to determine, Vistra only 

recently learned of the annexation and rezoning requests. 

I want to address your questions. But at the outset, please be informed that Vistra, parent company of the 

Hays Power Plant, will formally oppose and ask the City Council to deny the proposed annexation ordinance 

and rezoning request of the property when the City Council considers the second reading on August 2. Please 

consider this Vistra’s formal and respectful request to please address the Council in person when the agenda 

item comes up and prior to the vote at the August 2 meeting. 

Vistra is a Fortune 275 integrated energy company based in Irving, Texas that owns and operates almost 60 

power plants and energy storage facilities in 12 states and sells the electricity through its many retail brands. 

Vistra is the largest competitive power generator in the United States with a capacity of 39,000 megawatts, 

enough to power 20 million homes. You can learn more about Vistra here: www.vistracorp.com 

Vistra purchased the Hays Power Plant in 2018. The combined cycle natural gas plant plays a critical role in 

powering Texas. At 1,047 megawatts, it can provide electricity to more than 523,000 homes in normal 

conditions. During the current heat wave, Hays has been running nearly full time. 

Hays is among 20 plants we own and operate in Texas. What our company has learned in more than 130 years 

of operation is that the best locations for power plants are away from population centers, especially homes. 

As a vital industrial site, a power plant simply by nature of its operations can have higher noise and light levels. 

And when a plant trips, starts up or returns to service from maintenance, those events can be even louder. 

Vistra shares the concern of those on the City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission asking whether 

allowing homes immediately adjacent to Hays Power Plant is appropriate land use policy. Both the USEPA and 

TCEQ are both increasingly scrutinizing environmental justice issues and the proximity of neighborhoods to 

power plants. Should the City Council decide to approve the pending annexation and rezoning requests 

allowing for the construction of affordable housing that may serve lower income households near the plant, it 

 

 

Brad Watson 
Senior Director of Community Affairs 
brad.watson@vistracorp.com 

o 214.875.8010 | m 214.356.6550 

Vistra 
Dynegy 

Luminant 
TXU Energy 

Homefield Energy 
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would be inviting greater scrutiny of its actions here and in the future from those organizations that are 

focused on proximity to a power generation plant.  

Regarding noise, prior to selling the land in January 2022 Vistra informed the buyer and asked that the 

subsequent buyer be told as well that the plant can be noisy in its operations. 

Further, in the attached deed restrictions filed with Hays County when the land was sold, Vistra demanded, 

and developer Highlander Real Estate Partners agreed, for restrictive Covenants that forbid use of the 137 

acres next to Hays in any manner “that would interfere with the continued use and operation” of the plant. I 

urge you to read the Covenants closely.  While the Covenants do not generally prohibit development of a 

portion of the land for residential use, Vistra is concerned that the current proposed use of 470 single‐family 

lots across the entire parcel would almost certainly interfere with Vistra’s continued operation of the plant. 

To your questions about the transmission lines, noise, lighting, and general safety: 

 LCRA is responsible for the transmission lines extending from Hays Power Plant 

 Vistra has no record that the City of San Marcos has ever issued a citation to Hays Power Plant for 

alleged violation of noise or light ordinances 

 Per Section 1.06 of the Tax Abatement Agreement Between the City of San Marcos and Hays Energy, 

the plant was built to conform with all applicable City ordinances and regulations 

 Safety and environmental stewardship are Vistra’s top priorities as a company. Hays Power Plant 

operates under OSHA jurisdiction and in compliance with all TCEQ and EPA permits and regulations 

 

Vistra believes the Hays Power Plant has been a good corporate citizen since it went online in 2002 providing 

jobs, paying millions of dollars in tax payments to the City of San Marcos ($1.8 million over just the past two 

years) protecting freshwater resources through the use of reclaimed water from the City, and supporting the 

community with charitable donations, such as United Way of Hays County and, Hays County Food Bank. 

We are committed to build on that record and look forward to the continued strong partnership with the City 

for decades to come. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

From: Hjorth, Tyler <THjorth@sanmarcostx.gov>  
Sent: Friday, July 22, 2022 3:21 PM 
To: Rice, Jon <Jon.Rice@luminant.com>; Wiedenfeld, Kurt <Kurt.Wiedenfeld@vistracorp.com>; Rugeley, Will 
<WRugeley@sanmarcostx.gov>; Watson, Brad <Brad.Watson@luminant.com> 

 

 

Brad Watson 
Senior Director of Community Affairs 
brad.watson@vistracorp.com 
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Cc: Mattingly, Shannon <SMattingly@sanmarcostx.gov> 
Subject: Council Questions 
 

EXTERNAL EMAIL  
  
Thanks for meeting yesterday.  As promised, here are the list of specific questions that council is seeking answers to.  If 
you can provide answers to these next week, that will go a long way to satisfying their needs and potentially eliminating 
the need for us to answers question during the August 2nd open session. 
 
Transmission lines between Hays Energy and IH35 
Whose lines are those? 
How wide is the easement? 
Can the developer safely build right up to the edge of the easement, or is there an additional buffer (and what is the 
buffer dimension, it there is one)? 
What are the known health risks for residing immediately outside the easement or easement/buffer? 
 
Noise levels and controls 
What is the typical and the peak noise levels beyond the plant boundaries, particularly on the east side? 
Are these within the City’s noise ordinance limits?  Or is there some overriding agreement or legislation that allows for 
higher noise levels?  Is so, what are those limits? 
 
Plant lighting 
What is the impact of light levels on the areas outside plant property lines?  (If you have a plant photometric 
distribution, that would be amazing !! )  I don’t think the concern is dark sky compliance, although if you have that this 
would be the time to crow about it.  But the concern is for light level contribution in neighboring backyards. 
 
General Safety 
Educate us on the general environmental and safety concerns for developing the areas around the plant.  Comparison to 
other industries may be helpful. 
Is there a document or study that quantifies risks of living in close proximity (fire, explosion, spills, emissions, etc.)?   
 
 
I think if we can get these answered well, we will be in good shape.  Shannon – please give me a peer check on capturing 
all council’s needs and interests.  Hays team – please let me know if you have any questions or need clarification on any 
of these. 
 
Thanks again.  Everyone have a great weekend. 
 
 

 

Tyler J. Hjorth, P.E.  

Director | Utilities  

630 E. Hopkins, San Marcos, TX 78666  

512.393.8309  

Please take a moment to complete the City of San Marcos Customer Satisfaction Survey. 
 
 
Confidentiality Notice: This email message, including any attachments, contains or may contain confidential information 
intended only for the addressee. If you are not an intended recipient of this message, be advised that any reading, 
dissemination, forwarding, printing, copying or other use of this message or its attachments is strictly prohibited. If you 
have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by reply message and delete this email 
message and any attachments from your system.  
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CAUTION: This email is from an EXTERNAL source. Links or attachments may be dangerous. 
Click the Report Phishing button above if you think this email is malicious . 
 




















































